Albemarle County Planning Commission
FINAL Minutes May 18, 2021

The Albemarle County Planning Commission held a public hearing on Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at
6:00 p.m.

Members attending were Julian Bivins, Chair; Karen Firehock, Vice-Chair; Rick Randolph; Daniel
Bailey; Corey Clayborne; Jennie More; Tim Keller.

Members absent: Louis Carrazana (UVA Rep.).

Other officials present were Charles Rapp, Director of Planning; Andy Herrick, County Attorney’s
Office; and Carolyn Shaffer, Clerk to the Planning Commission.

Call to Order and Establish Quorum

Mr. Bivins said the meeting was being held pursuant to and in compliance with Ordinance No. 20-
A(16), “An Ordinance to Ensure the Continuity of Government During the COVID-19 Disaster.”
He said opportunities for the public to access and participate in the electronic meeting will be
posted at www.albemarle.org on the Community County Calendar, when available.

Ms. Schaffer called the roll. All Commissioners indicated their presence.
Mr. Bivins established a quorum.

Other Matters Not Listed on the Agenda from the Public
There were none.

Consent Agenda
There were no items on the consent agenda.

Public Hearings
SP202100002 St. John Family Life and Fitness Center
Ms. Gleason, senior planner in the planning division of the Community Development Department
in Albemarle County, presented the staff report. She said the subject property for this proposal
was located at 1569 St. John Road on tax map parcel 66-78. She said the property is located in
the rural area about 0.6 miles south of the intersection of Gordonsville Road and St. John Road.

She said the parcels surrounding the property here generally are used for residential and
agricultural uses.

Ms. Gleason said there are two existing buildings on this 6.1-acre parcel; the larger building to
the north is St. John Baptist Church, and located directly behind the church is a small cemetery.
She said the second building on the property is a single-story frame building that is the historic
Rosenwald School. She said the building was constructed around 1923 as a school for rural
African American students until 1954 when schools were desegregated. She said the applicant is
requesting to adaptively reuse the historic school building as a local community center.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 1
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021


http://www.albemarle.org/

Ms. Gleason said the applicants’ narrative states that they plan to use the renovated space to
offer an exercise room and a display room with amenities that include a library, computer, and a
museum to share the building’s history. She said the renovated space would also offer multiple
meeting areas for groups, classes, lectures, and workshops. She said the building is
approximately 1,500 square feet in size, and the applicant was not proposing extensive external
changes to the site to accommodate the use; that said, there would be some on-site
improvements to make the proposed community center building handicap accessible. Ms.
Gleason noted that during the review of this proposal, no outstanding concerns were identified by
staff or members of the public.

Ms. Gleason said staff found a number of factors favorable to the proposal including the
restoration and preservation of a historically and culturally significant local building; the proposed
use would act as a publicly accessible educational resource; and the proposed use would provide
services and support to rural area residents. She said no unfavorable factors were identified.

Ms. Gleason said to preserve the factors that were found favorable, staff recommends the
conditions in the staff report; the applicant has indicated that they are agreeable to these
conditions as well.

Mr. Bivins asked if he saw an historic marker.

Ms. Gleason affirmed that approval for the historic marker was received in 2016.
Mr. Bivins asked if that was about the school or the church.

Ms. Kinney replied that it was about the school.

Ms. Kinney thanked the Commission for the opportunity to share the story and history of their
nonprofit. Ms. Kinney said she was the board president, and their vice president, Pastor Kelvin
Hawkins, was also present at the meeting in addition to Mr. Jody Lahendro and Ms. Kathy
Garstang, both Building Goodness team members.

Ms. Kinney said with their mission, they will provide physical, educational, and spiritual programs
that will enhance the participants in living a better quality of life. She said they will be located in
the renovated elementary school built in 1922 and identified as one of the 382 historical African
American Rosenwald schools in Virginia; this is one of seven in Albemarle County built and will
be the only one available to the public once renovated. She said their goal is to preserve the
history of this unique period in Southern African American education.

Ms. Kinney said they will continue the legacy of education established in the past into the future
with the education of mind, body, and soul. She said their first goal is to restore and preserve the
former historical Rosenwald school, which is where education began for the Cobham community
of African American students. She said that would include her, her mother, her siblings, and this
is the story for so many of the alumni that are still living in the community; if they are not there,
their legacy will carry on with their families that still live there.

Ms. Kinney said this would be the home for their community center and fithess center. She said
the programs offered would be available to anyone wishing to exercise or attend classes and
workshops. She said in addition, they would be able to spend time in the resource library or walk
down memory lane in the museum and experience the environment of learning from the African

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 2
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



American community during that time.

Ms. Kinney presented a slide listing the two participants from the nonprofit center as well as all
the people who are donating their precious skills and knowledge from the Building Goodness
Foundation. She said this is a well-thought-out project with people who have skills and knowledge;
they have designed and constructed a team that has laid out plans and designs for electrical work,
architectural work, plumbing work, HVAC work. She said they are a well laid out group that have
the plans all laid out, and they are grateful to them and their support.

Ms. Kinney said since 2011, they have accomplished quite a bit. She said they have their board
of directors as well as committee members and have 501(c) status that was also achieved in
2011. She said in 2016, they had a highway marker. She said in 2018, they completed a septic
system with private funds from donors and also from the Charlottesville Area Community
Foundation, which has been very supportive towards them, with a Bama Dave Matthews grant
which contributed towards the septic system, and that is complete. She said in 2019, they received
a $75,000 grant from the federal government, and that was to stabilize the building; in addition to
that $75,000, they also received another $15,000 from CACF, and that is complete now, so they
have completed stabilization of the building and the septic system.

Ms. Kinney said they are also listed with the help of Niya Bates on the national registry and also
the Department of Historic Resources in 2019. She said in 2020, they were blessed with the
Building Goodness Foundation to help with phase Il of their renovation, which is the interior part
of the renovation. She said additional funding is required; it is quite a large project. She said in
addition, they have submitted two other grants, another one to the federal government, which is
an African American civil rights grant. She said they are requesting this time $108,000. She said
they will know the results of that request by the end of June. She said they also requested another
$10,000 from Bama Works and will know from them also in June, and they look forward to hearing
those results and feel very positive about that. She said additional funding is required, and they
will be working with private donors, fundraisers, additional grants to achieve that goal.

Ms. Kinney said as far as the timeline is concerned, they project subject to availability of funds
that they can complete this project by the end of the summer/early fall.

Mr. Lahendro said Ms. Gleason had covered the location, and he presented a timeline for the
building with early photos of the school once it was completed. He said the Rosenwald program
and Tuskegee were very careful in recording the schools that were built.

Mr. Lahendro spoke more about the Rosenwald program. He said it was a creation between
Booker T. Washington at Tuskegee Institute and Julius Rosenwald, the president of Sears
Roebuck, to fund over 5,000 schools through the rural South for the education of African
Americans from about 1912 to 1932. He said, as Ms. Kinney had pointed out, there were seven
constructed in Albemarle County; five of them still remain, but of those, they are either residences
or abandoned derelict buildings. He said about a tenth of the 5,000 still remain in the country, and
about a third of those built in Virginia remain.

Mr. Lahendro said Ms. Gleason also talked about the few exterior changes they are making. He
said they are very small with a couple of sidewalks, a handicapped ramp, and reopening one of
the historic doors that was closed up during its conversion to a residence.

Mr. Lahendro said inside, through his on-site research, he discovered that almost 85% of the

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 3
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



interior finishes still remain underneath the renovations and added drywall put in by the house
conversion. He said he was able to document the changes created by that house conversion. He
said for their proposed adaptive reuse, they are restoring the interiors, restoring the finishes and
the doors, and they are constructing a new exterior ramp and then putting in new walls that will
be complying with the Secretary’s standards for rehabilitation, in that they will be obviously
modern changes to the building. He demonstrated the elevation of the ramp.

Mr. Lahendro said they are complying with several comprehensive plan goals and objectives: for
the rural areas, they believe they are complying with objectives 1 and 3; for the historic cultural
scenic resources, they believe they are complying with objectives 2, 3, and 4.

Mr. Clayborne asked if there was any thought now or in the future if there would be any exterior
interpretative signage or exterior displays outside the building located on site.

Mr. Lahendro said he had not thought about that and asked Ms. Kinney to talk about that.

Ms. Kinney said the only thing that came to mind was that they were planning a memorial patio;
that has been since 2011 when they started to fundraise a buy-a-brick, and these bricks are
inscribed with a memory of people and contribute to the memory of this project. She said they are
not sure where it is going to be located because they need to be careful as to where they locate
it.

Mr. Lahendro asked if there would be signage for the family fithess center itself.
Ms. Kinney said they had not thought about that yet.

Mr. Clayborne said sometimes on these projects (for example, statues or at a battlefield), there is
signage that might tell stories and so forth. He said if that is part of future plans to give some
careful thought about where it might go on the site. He said he loved the project.

Pastor Hawkins added that they already have an historical marker there located in front of the
building now for the school.

Mr. Keller congratulated Ms. Kinney and Pastor Hawkins. He said he was fortunate to be at the
2016 dedication of the state marker and the celebration Eva Walker had. He said they had been
welcomed into the community, and it was a wonderful experience. He mentioned the survey that
Preservation Virginia undertook of Rosenwald schools starting in 2013 and said he would put the
link on for the Commissioners to see all the data for the state that Mr. Lahendro was referring to.
He said this has been a great project. He said they had a vision from the beginning of what they
wanted to do, and it was exciting for the Commissioners as appointed officials to see a vision that
is thoughtfully worked through, and they are achieving it. He said they were excited to see that.

Mr. Bivins noted that one of the conditions was that the days of operation would be from Monday
to Saturday. He asked if St. John had a space that he would call a church hall or a parish hall, an
internal space there, for example, where if there was a special event on a Sunday, they would
ever need to use that space.

Pastor Hawkins said they have a fellowship hall in the sanctuary currently so they would not need
that space.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 4
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



Mr. Bivins said he wanted to make sure because sometimes when families come together or when
there is a reunion, there may be a need for space on a Sunday, and he wanted to make sure that
everybody was okay because of the Monday through Saturday use of the space.

Mr. Bivins opened for public comments. There were none.

Ms. Kinney thanked the Commissioners for taking the time to hear their presentation and was
looking forward to hearing their results.

Ms. Firehock commended them for their work and said it was a great application, and she was
glad they had spent all the years and diligence to bring it to this point.

Mr. Randolph echoed everything Ms. Firehock and Mr. Keller said.

Mr. Bailey said he was excited to see it be completed and to be able to visit and learn more about
the site and its history.

Mr. Bivins encouraged the applicants to give some serious thought to being able to put some
interpretative signs around the project when they do finish it. He said he would connect this to the
reason why he would stress that with them. He noted that the Charlottesville-Albemarle Tourist
Bureau recently had said that it was seriously considering putting together a route to lift up Black
history in the area, and so he would hope, since they are the only Rosenwald school that would
be open to the public, that they would be on that route.

Mr. Bivins said the other interesting thing is that they sit in an area that has a number of wineries
and a cidery, so with lots of people being in that area just doing the other things that are promoted,
it would be wonderful that as they were driving down 231, they might take a right-hand turn and
learn something about the other part of the community that has been there for all these years. He
encouraged the applicants to work with people in the town to make sure they get those
interpretative signs.

Mr. Lahendro confirmed that what Mr. Bivins had recommended was part of the proposal that they
have made.

Mr. Clayborne echoed what Mr. Bivins had said as the reason for his question about the
interpretive signage on the site; it would be amazing to be able to attract people even when it is
not open to come by and read and learn and so forth while they are in the area. He said he was
proud that this was actually in his district. He said it is not too often where they get something that
is not run of the mill and be proud of that. He said as a fellow architect, he could also sleep at
night because with Mr. Lahendro on the project, he knew it was in really, really good hands, and
as an architect, he would also say these are the kinds of projects that breathe new life into a
community, and so with that, he was prepared to give his enthusiastic support behind this project.

MOTION: Mr. Clayborne moved to recommend approval of SP2021-00002, St. John Family Life
and Fitness Center, with the reasons and conditions stated in the staff report.

Ms. Firehock seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7:0).

Mr. Bivins told the applicants that this part of the process had been approved by the Planning
Commission and would be going forward with their recommendation to the Board of Supervisors,

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 5
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



and Ms. Gleason would be working with them for that next stage.

Mr. Bivins recommended to his colleagues if they had not had the opportunity to go to this location
and just stand there. He noted that he found out his ancestors were from Danville, where there is
also a host of the Rosenwald schools. He said when the Black people migrated to the North, they
did not talk a lot about what they left behind; it was a new time. Mr. Bivins remarked on being able
to stand in that space and to recognize that this was where Black people were educated when
they could not be educated anyplace else (particularly with the history of Charlottesville and
Albemarle and being a place of resistance). He said he would just encourage the applicants to
tell their story and tell the story of that place and the people who went through there and the way
lives there were shaped through that school because it is a story worth knowing and a story worth
telling. He wished the applicants great success as they continue with the process.

Mr. Keller reminded Mr. Bivins that he had put the address for people who were interested in more
information on the chat.

Regular Iltem

SP202000019 Christian Aid Mission Special Exception for disturbance of critical slopes

Mr. Benish, Planning Chief, presented the staff report. He said this special exception request is
to allow the disturbance of critical slopes on tax map parcel 59-23-G1, which is the current location
of the Christian Aid mission and also the Regents School. He said the purpose of the request was
to allow for the construction of a new entrance onto Broomley Road. He said the property is zoned
CO commercial; it also is within the entrance corridor overlay district and the steep slopes overlay
district.

Mr. Benish said this area within all those zones for development is in the rural area and is
designated as rural area property. He said the proposal is to allow for an entrance onto Broomley
Road, and a critical slope waiver request is required as per 18-4.2.3 of the ordinance. He said the
property is located on Route 250 and Broomley Road; it is on the western boundary. He
demonstrated a vicinity map of the property which also showed the zoning for the area. He said
to the east of the property are commercial properties, a tractor dealership and a church; to the
west was Ivy Nursery; to the north are residential neighborhoods Flordon and part of Farmington;
and to the south are rural area uses and agricultural and open space area.

Mr. Benish presented an aerial photo of the property. He noted the area being impacted with
Route 250 to the south, Broomley Road to the left, and the building on the far-left edge is vy
Nursery. He demonstrated a slide of the improvement area and also a cross-section and a larger
photo of the area highlighting the critical slope portions that would be impacted.

Mr. Benish provided history relevant to the proposal. He said in 2014, a critical slope waiver
request was submitted in conjunction with special use permit 201400005. He said that special
permit was for the expansion of Regents School, and it was to allow access to Broomley Road;
in part, it was a way to address traffic concerns with that school expansion. He said the Board of
Supervisors denied that prior special exception critical slopes waiver request noting the proposal
would facilitate intensification of use of the property contrary to the comprehensive plan policies
for preserving the rural area character of the area. He said this review was in conjunction with
that special use permit expansion request for the private school.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 6
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



Mr. Benish said as noted in the applicants’ narrative, some Board members did note that the
timing for the closure of the Broomley Road bridge at that time for reconstruction was a concern
that they had in approving that new entrance at that time. He said to close the history on the
special use permit, the special use permit was approved for the expansion of Regents School,
but a sunset was placed on it at the time that said they would need to leave the site within three
years; that sunset was rescinded in 2017 so they could actually stay on that site indefinitely, but
the school has purchased another property in the County with the hopes of relocating in the future.

Mr. Benish noted in the specifics of this proposal that a little bit less than 5,000 square feet of
critical slopes would be impacted, not quite 1% of the 12-acre parcel. He said the impacted slopes
are mostly man-made and have been related over a number of years to the construction of
Broomley Road, an old access road adjacent to the railroad tracks, the railroad track itself, the
recent bridge upgrading, and some leftover fill area was deposited in this general area. He said
there are no other critical resources that are identified that are located adjacent to these particular
critical slope areas such as floodplain or stream buffer. He noted this entire area is in the South
Fork Rivanna River watershed, which is an area of protection with a level of protection they want
to make sure to cover.

Mr. Benish said the access road on the site onto Broomley Road and the entrance itself was in a
location where it can meet County and VDOT design requirements.

Mr. Benish said in reviewing waiver requests, the County Engineer reviews aspects of the
proposal under the noted zoning ordinance section, and they look at the impacts to movement of
soil and rock, excessive stormwater runoff, siltation, loss of aesthetic resources, and effluent. He
said the full engineer’s report is in the Planning Commission staff report, but their conclusion was
that there were no engineering concerns that would prohibit the disturbance of these critical
slopes. Mr. Benish said Matt Wentland from the County Engineer’s office was there for questions
regarding that or any issues related to the proposed construction to the extent that that has been
evaluated at this time.

Mr. Benish said in making a decision on this proposal, the Commission and the Board have to
consider their decision based on certain findings contained in the section of the ordinance he
displayed, which stated that waivers can be granted if there is a finding that there is no detrimental
impact to public health, safety or welfare, to the orderly development of the area, or to adjacent
properties and that it would not be contrary to engineering practices.

Mr. Benish said the staff report had provided an assessment of those areas and the findings. He
said the conclusion was that many of these slopes are man-made and have been reconstructed
areas and that granting of the waiver could better serve the public health, safety, and welfare by
allowing for a safer alternative access to a signalized intersection which would provide for safer
development to the site. He said that was in regard to finding A, which is that strict application
would not forward the purposes and intent of the ordinance or otherwise serve health, public
safety, or welfare.

Mr. Benish said for finding B, the alternatives proposed by the developer would satisfy the intent
of the ordinance to at least an equivalent degree. He said there have been no alternatives
provided that would have no impact to critical slopes. He said there was another option for design
that was looked at that would have greater impacts to critical slopes, and it also should be noted
that any location of any new entrance onto Broomley Road would impact some level of critical
slopes since most of the abutting property has critical slopes related to it.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 7
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



Mr. Benish said the findings and areas to evaluate in C and D that there are unusual
characteristics to the property or that conditions prohibiting the disturbance of the critical slopes
would create an unreasonable ability to use the property were not the case in this proposal. He
said for D (granting the modification or waiver would serve the public purpose to a greater degree
than strict application of these regulations), this disturbance would be necessary to allow for a
safer access to intersection onto Route 250. He said all the points made under A would also be
applicable again to the public safety aspect of this proposal.

Mr. Benish said the factors favorable were that the relatively small area of disturbed critical slopes
is mostly man-made and not directly associated with other critical slope systems; the County
Engineer has identified no engineering concerns which would prohibit the disturbance of these
critical slopes to allow for the entrance; the disturbance of critical slopes would allow for the
construction of an alternative access which would better and more safely accommodate traffic
generated by the uses on the site; and the proposed entrance location can meet both County and
VDOT standards for construction.

Mr. Benish said the factor unfavorable is that the additional entrance would introduce additional
traffic onto Broomley Road. He said it should be noted that the existing entrance on 250 will be
retained, which would mitigate that additional traffic impact.

Mr. Benish said based on the findings contained in the report, staff has recommended approval
of this special exception request with the condition reflected in an exhibit that just identifies the
area that is proposed for construction.

Ms. Firehock said she knew Mr. Benish had talked about the fact that the school had found
another place, and they needed this new entrance for other uses. She asked if Mr. Benish knew
what those other uses were. She said obviously there was some need generated for this new
bigger entrance, and she was trying to understand what that is.

Mr. Benish said the applicant was best to respond to that. He said as far as he knew, they had no
specific proposal request or application for a different use on the site, though the property is being
marketed. He said the uses that could be anticipated are those that are permitted under that CO
zoning, so there is a range of office and service and some level of retail uses/commercial uses
that could be permitted by right within the site.

Mr. Bailey said he was trying to decipher the plans a bit. He noted it was a mounded area there;
to get back to Broomley is a significant drop. He asked if the plan was to cut the road in. He said
he saw it was just a step-back. He asked if they were just stepping it back or putting retaining
walls in.

Mr. Benish said the applicant would be best to explain that. He said the cross-section that he had
shown actually just showed grades, and he did not believe there were any retaining walls
proposed at this point in time. He said Mr. Matt Wentland from the County Engineer’s office may
be available, and the applicant would probably go into that with their presentation.

Mr. Bailey asked if to maximize visibility when someone was coming out of that entrance to turn
on Broomley, they were going to try to grade it back to reduce the height so one could actually
see from their car up and down Broomley.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 8
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



Mr. Benish said that would be a requirement of VDOT to meet the permitting requirement, and
Mr. Adam Moore from VDOT was also there and available to answer those questions. He said
the sight distance is roughly equivalent to ten times the posted speed limit, so they would have to
meet whatever that requirement is by VDOT, and there will be sight distance requirements in both
directions.

Mr. Bailey asked if that was figured into how much of the critical slopes would be disturbed.

Mr. Benish said it was his understanding that in the County Engineer’s review, they did assess
the feasibility of the access road so that they have a realistic proposal for what could be built and
what that impact is on the critical slopes in that 4,959 square feet.

Mr. Bivins asked if they could hear a little bit about that intersection there from Mr. Adam Moore.
He asked if the first intersection would still be a right in/right out.

Mr. Benish said regarding the existing entrance off vy Road/Route 250, right now with the
approval of the Regents School, they were required to put in channelization. He said that
channelization restricts lefts out; it allows lefts into the site but not lefts out, which would be lefts
toward the City. He said currently to head toward the City, one must make a right and make a U-
turn at some location. He said that is a requirement of the special use permit for the private school;
once the private school vacates the site, that channelization would not be necessary because the
use that requires it would no longer be there.

Mr. Bivins asked Mr. Moore to talk about that intersection as it is today and what might be
expected if this were to go forward.

Mr. Moore said, as Mr. Benish explained, with the restricted movements at the one existing
entrance, there are really a lack of opportunities for people heading east from the site to turn
around. He said the Commissioners may remember that there have been public concerns in the
past about people taking U-turns at unsafe locations. He said those complaints have died down
somewhat, but the fact remains that there is no good place to make a U-turn anywhere
immediately west. He said the presence of this location would mean that people exiting this site
could easily access a signal and go eastbound with few hurdles.

Mr. Bivins asked if they had accident data for that intersection. He said he had the scatter map
but was having a hard time reading the legend.

Mr. Moore said he would describe this as pretty typical for a rural signalized two-lane intersection;
in the last five years, there have been approximately 13 crashes, the great majority of which are
rear-end crashes, which is what one would expect at traffic signals. He said when a traffic signal
is introduced, people not paying attention come up on a red light and hit the person right in front
of them who is stopped for the signal. He said very few of the crashes at the intersection are
related to this site or the existing entrance. He said only three of the 13 were not rear-end; most
were just property damage. He said some minor crashes are another thing to be expected at
signalized intersections. He said there are a lot of crashes, but oftentimes they are less severe
because rear-end crashes are just generally not as severe. He said there are always a few
crashes with every intersection that are sort of wild cards, hard to explain or not really attributable
to anything about the intersection.

Mr. Bivins asked if Mr. Matt Wentland could speak to Mr. Bailey’s question about what he had

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 9
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



seen when he evaluated the slope.

Mr. Wentland said what they provided is they were doing just an upgrading to get the road in. He
said he did not see where they were knocking down a mound more than what they had to. He
said it was just to meet the slope requirements on the road itself and just the minimum disturbance
possible.

Ms. Kelsey Schlein, a planner with Shimp Engineering, said she was there that evening
representing the property owner and applicant, Christian Aid Mission, with the request for critical
slopes disturbance. She said the 12-acre site was located at the intersection of Route 250 and
Broomley Road adjacent to Ivy Nursery.

Ms. Schlein described some site characteristics. She said the total site is 12 acres; according to
County GIF, the site area designated as critical slopes is approximately 3.03 acres, which is 25%
of the site, and the area of slopes requested to be disturbed with this request is just under 5,000
square feet, which is approximately 3.7% of total slopes on the site. She demonstrated a map
showing the critical slopes that are present on the site, which wrap around the developed areas
of the property and extend along the entirety of Broomley Road. She said, as Mr. Benish alluded
to, any entrance off Broomley Road would necessitate disturbance of critical slopes.

Ms. Schlein described the project proposal. She noted the entrance spacing for the new entrance
exceeded VDOT spacing standards of 440 feet for this entrance location. She said Mr. Wentland
had already clarified that there were no retaining walls proposed; the goal here was really to
create an entrance to allow for a safer, controlled, out left movement at the intersection of
Broomley and Route 250 and to minimize disturbance of critical slopes in order to achieve that
traffic maneuver. She said they were serving just enough to get their entrance and travel way in
there, and later in the presentation, she would go through a few design iterations that were
presented to the County that ultimately got them to the lowest critical slopes disturbance of 4,950
that they are requesting from the Planning Commission.

Ms. Schlein demonstrated a cross-section showing that the proposed construction is a cut instead
of afill. She noted there was less likelihood for increased erosion with cutting into the slopes when
compared to placing fill on a slope.

Ms. Schlein demonstrated approximately where the entrance would go off of Broomley Road
extending up into the site. She demonstrated on the map an area approximately showing where
the slopes exist that are proposed to be disturbed. She said this was also a good image to speak
to the fact that much of these slopes in this area were disturbed in 2014 and 2015 during the
reconstruction of the Broomley bridge. She pointed out the silt fences along the property line and
along the access road back to the stormwater facility and some recent grading done just before
this image was taken. She said the site is nearby to the railroad and Broomley bridge as well.

Ms. Schlein showed some images of how the slopes look currently with some aerials showing the
approximate entrance location. She said it was not incredibly steep there; she believed most of
the slopes in this area were mostly in the 25% to 27%-28% range.

Ms. Schlein showed a picture looking from the site at the top of the slope toward the bridge and
pointed out the Ivy Nursery entrance. She demonstrated another in the slope looking at the riprap
channel that was reconstructed during the reconstruction of Broomley Road bridge and noted the
fence was along Ivy Nursery.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 10
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



Ms. Schlein said going through a few design iterations that they had presented; it was proposed
to them by the County to consider placing an entrance location perhaps where the existing
accessway to the stormwater facility is. She said they explored that option, and that resulted in a
significantly greater amount of critical slopes disturbance, almost 17,000 square feet compared
to just under 5,000 that they are requesting. She said additionally, they were requesting
approximately 5,500 square feet of disturbance and got a very helpful comment from engineering
to think through how some water would run across the slope in the future, and that prompted them
to put in a curb along one side, and that also allowed them to tighten up the grade even more,
further reducing the critical slopes disturbance.

Ms. Schlein said County staff has reviewed the proposal several times, and they are thankful for
that, because they think they have ultimately come up with a design that really limits critical slopes
disturbance.

Ms. Schlein noted as Mr. Benish had mentioned that the proposal was reviewed back in 2014.
She said the major change since that 2014 request was the construction of the Broomley Road
bridge. She said it was noted in the Board minutes that several of the Board members had a little
bit of heartburn about the premature nature of approving the disturbance of critical slopes to permit
an entrance in a location that perhaps they would not be happy with at some point down the road.

Ms. Schlein said additionally, the entrance location as proposed now meets VDOT standards.
She said with the construction of the Broomley Road bridge, they were able to move that entrance
further down to the northern property line and meet VDOT standards. She said it was also noted
in the minutes that it was a great concern of neighbors to be pursuing that VDOT waiver in this
location, especially some concern about potential rear-end collisions from neighbors along
Broomley Road for people turning in too closely to an entrance that was sighted too closely to the
intersection of Route 250 and Broomley, so they are meeting VDOT entrance spacing standards
with this request.

Ms. Schlein said in conclusion to please consider the man-made nature of the majority of these
slopes and that strict adherence to the requirements to not disturb the critical slopes would not
serve the public health, safety, and welfare, as there are no environmentally sensitive features
that are in the vicinity of the project area that would be negatively impacted by the disturbance of
the slopes. She said granting of this waiver would better serve the health, safety, and general
welfare by allowing for users exiting the site to make a controlled left-out movement at the
intersection of Route 250 and Broomley.

Ms. Schlein said she would be available for any questions, and Mr. Justin Shimp, project engineer,
was also on the call as well.

Ms. Firehock asked what, if any, conflicts they anticipated with locating the new entrance across
from a busy plant nursery.

Ms. Schlein said they actually did receive a comment from VDOT early on just to consider if there
would be any conflicting left movements. She said the real conflict point that would happen from
having an entrance located across from Ivy Nursery would be somebody making a left out of Ivy
Nursery and then also making a left out of the Christian Aid Mission site, and so the entrances
are sighted outside of that conflict zone. She said that was one of the initial concerns that was
brought up, and this design and spacing meets the requirements to avoid that situation.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 11
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



Ms. Schlein said additionally, a future user has not been identified at this time. She said any by-
right user or future user on the property would much appreciate this entrance and the option to
allow people who are utilizing the site to make that controlled left movement so that they can head
back into town, and this is really spurred by Regents School having the site perhaps moving off.
She noted as Mr. Benish had said, if there was any opportunity or chance of the school remaining
on the site, the special use permit would also have to be amended because this entrance is
inconsistent with their approved concept plan.

Mr. Bivins asked Ms. Schlein if this was an in-and-out entrance, so people would enter the
property and also exit the property.

Ms. Schlein replied that full access was correct.

Mr. Bailey referred to the one option Ms. Schlein had shared that would disturb more critical
slopes, where those slopes were previously disturbed for other purposes and so were not being
preserved per se. He said he wanted to get a sense from her and the discussion once again from
VDOT and coming back to what Ms. Firehock was alluding to about having a staggered in and
out with a busy nursery and the potential that may cause from people turning right out of the
nursery to get back to 250 and someone turning left across and not seeing them (they are not
directly across but staggered by some distance). He asked her to walk him through what the
decision criteria was to not go with that iteration; he asked if it was mainly due to the critical slopes
aspect and the amount of critical slopes affected or if there was a public safety concern and how
that weighed. He asked about the discussion and the criteria around the decision for the final
iteration Ms. Schlein was showing the Commissioners and applying for.

Ms. Schlein said it was mainly around the disturbance of critical slopes, but additionally that
existing entrance is an access road to a stormwater facility, and so there was some concern just
about upgrading a portion of that to a full access entrance and just exactly how those would
function together. She said ultimately it was decided that ideally, they would keep the access to
the stormwater management facility and access to the site separate. Ms. Schlein asked Mr. Shimp
or Mr. Moore if there was anything additional to add.

Mr. Bailey asked them to speak to the second part of the question, which was the discussion
around potential impacts of safety with having these two staggered entrances onto Broomley
Road from lvy Nursery and this site.

Ms. Schlein said the entrance location and how these entrances interact with one another has
been reviewed by VDOT; any entrance permit ultimately is going to be granted by VDOT, and so
at this point, they have not been made aware of any conflicts that would occur with the entrance
across the street.

Mr. Benish added that staff focused in on limiting the impacts and grading and water supply and
watershed, and so the reduced area of grading was beneficial to the County. He said it was their
understanding that the offset is conceivably acceptable under VDOT standards. He said Mr.
Moore could speak better to that. He said he knew from some history that there has been some
discussion that offset intersections may actually be just as safe or no more dangerous than
aligned intersections because the same lack of visibility can occur; when two people not looking
at each other are making a turn, when they are offset, there is actually margin for error for that
activity to occur. He said staff's understanding was that the offset was acceptable to VDOT

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 12
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



pending further detailed planning.

Mr. Moore said he reviewed the entrance location. He said the entrance across the street is not
of significant concern; it is a very low volume road and relatively low volume entrances, and there
should not be too many conflicting movements, especially with the lack of concentrated peak
times of travel not being aligned as well.

Ms. Shaffer said there were no public comments.

Mr. Randolph said he was delighted to see this before them that evening because when they last
reviewed this as a Planning Commission in 2014, many of them were concerned from a safety
standpoint of traffic going onto 250 from the site, especially because of the exponential growth of
the school (and kudos to the school for that growth). He said he was delighted that they had found
a larger facility; he had said at the time in 2014, he hoped as they continued to grow, they would
be able to identify another campus in Albemarle County, and they have done that, and he is happy
for the school that that has happened. He said he is also happy for the traffic flow on 250 as a
result of that happening, for there would be fewer U-turns as a result of the future use of the site.

Mr. Randolph said given the fact that the Broomley bridge enhancement and redevelopment has
occurred, this is the appropriate and logical and really owed next step for this site; regardless of
who uses the site, from a public safety standpoint, this will be a major enhancement of safety on
this particular site. He said the fact that they have worked to go from almost 17,000 square feet
of disturbance down to just under 5,000 square feet of disturbance was a really forward step
because impact to the critical slopes was agonized over in 2014, and therefore he thought it was
a solid proposal and has his enthusiastic support.

Mr. Keller said he had served on the Planning Commission at that time with Mr. Randolph, and
he has done a very fine job of summarizing the situation as they saw it. He said there was a lot of
discussion and a lot of positive feeling about moving traffic onto Broomley Road, but then the
issues of the slopes came in, and the Supervisors weighed in. He said he agreed that this was
the time to go forward with this, and he supports it.

Mr. Bivins said he is in and out of Ivy Nursery a lot; it makes sense coming to that entrance there
to just look slightly right and left, and that entrance would catch someone’s eye as opposed to
looking straight ahead. He said he was not on the Planning Commission, but he also thought
having it offset actually works for the way he comes to that entrance. He mentioned the one time
that it would be a little challenging there would be around the Christmas holiday; the way they
move vehicles through Ivy Nursery getting Christmas trees through there is quite a production,
but that is also for the people coming down Broomley too—they have to deal with that. He said
that would be the only time he thought one would see the level of traffic that a number of them
might have been concerned with.

Mr. Bivins said with Northridge becoming the western clinics and also the rehabilitation hospital
and also the Radiati9on Oncology Moser there, there is a lot of traffic that probably was not there
in 2014 when his two colleagues were reviewing this proposal, so anything that would help to
mitigate some of the traffic flow going directly onto 250 would be helpful. He said this project does
that and would be helping to bring a bit more logic to the way people get in and out of that particular
parking over there, so he too would support this.

Mr. Bailey said anything to get some of the traffic off 250 is a win in his book, so he wholeheartedly

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 13
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



supports this; he had just wanted to understand and make sure what the decision between how
much critical slopes was versus other factors.

Mr. Keller moved to recommend approval of SE202000019, Christian Aid Mission Critical Slope
Waiver, for the reasons stated in the staff report with the following condition: The area of land
disturbance on critical slopes must be in general accord with the “critical slopes disturbance
section A-A’ exhibit” prepared by Shimp Engineering P.C., dated October 26, 2020, revised April
22, 2021.

Mr. Randolph seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7:0).
Committee Reports

Mr. Clayborne said he attended the Places29 CAC meeting on May 13". He said if the
Commissioners would recall, the RST project was on 29 North right near Ashwood Boulevard;
the developers went back and made some changes to that, and so it will be coming back before
the Planning Commission. He said some of the changes are that they reduced the number of
units from 370 to 340; there are now two five-story buildings, which was the hub of the project,
with stepbacks on the fifth floor; and now they have three four-story buildings in the back, so they
reduced the number of buildings, increased the green space and buffers and so forth, so it will
look a little different when it comes back. He said it was a relatively positive meeting; he
remembered when it came before the Planning Commission last time, two HOAs came back in
pretty strong force in opposition, and so there were not many opposing comments at the CAC.
He noted that did not mean people were not holding back, but it was a much different flavor than
when they came before the Planning Commission. He said to be on the lookout for that.

Mr. Keller said MPO Tech was quite interesting that day, and there were two presentations in
particular he would like to share briefly. He said the first one was a PhD student in engineering at
UVA who for her master’s work did an analysis of bicycle accidents in the area. He said he thought
that a lot of them were interested in knowing more details of the real story as opposed to all the
anecdotal. He said her presentation is going to be made available on the website.

Mr. Keller said some interesting takeaways from that are that there were actually more severe
bicycle accidents (different ratings, so he did not necessarily mean fatal) involving alcohol with
bicycles. He said one thinks about alcohol with the drivers, but actually there is a significant
percentage of accidents that are involved with the cyclists and alcohol. He said the
Commonwealth does not have laws against cyclists being inebriated the way it does for
automobiles, and there are maybe pluses and minuses to that that she went into.

Mr. Keller said that was kind of a tease to say there was interesting information. He noted it was
from several years back and was old data, and there are a number of people on MPO Tech (and
CTAC from before) that would like to see a much more robust study done for the area to get into
this. He said it was a funding priority that was put forward by MPO Tech that was not picked up
by MPO, but there are some extra monies, and so he would like to think that maybe something
will come of that. He suggested they should invite this individual to do the presentation for them.

Mr. Keller said the second major piece was about Smart Scale Round 5, and of course that is
going to be discussed by the Supervisors the following day. He said it was kind of early to say,
but there seemed to be agreement with City and County representatives that places to the south
of Charlottesville are important, but projects to the north are important to the County and maybe

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 14
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



less important to the City for different reasons. He said there seemed to be more money that is
coming forward with maybe finding some more money at the state level, so maybe a lot of these
things are going to be accomplished, and there is not going to be a tradeoff. He said a lot of
interesting and thoughtful planning action for 250 East is looking to be around the corner.

Mr. Randolph said on Saturday he was out on the roads of Mathews County and the Middle
Peninsula with 600+ other cyclists. He told Mr. Keller that it was really good that he brought this
up; his concern is going to be with legalization of marijuana given the fact that there are not many
dedicated trails. He said outside of Capital Trail and a trail down near Blacksburg, most cyclists
have to use roads. He expressed concern about people smoking dope (which he acknowledged
already happens currently) and riding bikes and mixing that with alcohol.

Mr. Randolph said two absolutely critical things that he observed over the weekend were, number
one, everybody riding on public roads needs to have a blinking red light on the back of their bicycle
to help identify themselves for motorists, who oftentimes are distracted on their cellphone and not
paying attention much to the road; and secondly, having observed this firsthand because he was
the person coming the opposite direction, having a group of cyclists riding two or three abreast
on a narrow road leads to an impatient driver who then swings around, and woe be one coming
the opposite direction on a bicycle. He said this driver missed him by several inches as he was
going the opposite direction.

Mr. Randolph said cyclists have some responsibility here to know the laws of the road and also
the rules of the road and to extend courtesy to drivers, and drivers in turn to extend courtesy to
bicyclists, but he looks forward to that study.

Mr. Randolph said he did have one correction he wanted to make, and because he is reading the
minutes from last week, it is even more alarming to him; he gave the wrong figure for Breezy Hill—
it will be 80 units that they are proposing, not 69 that he said, and therefore it is higher than the
actual by right. He said it kind of looks like it is by right (“super by right”), but it still is 80 units. He
said they will be talking more about that; the CAC met and had a discussion the past Monday
about that, so they will go forward from that.

Mr. Bivins shared that the Places 29 Hydraulic CAC met the night before, and they received sort
of a long informative report from the South Rivanna Reservoir to Ragged Mountain Reservoir raw
waterline project. He said he did not remember them ever seeing that on the Commission. He
described it as the pipeline going from the South Rivanna over to Ragged Mountain.

Mr. Randolph said not in his knowledge did the Board see it in the 4 years he was on the Board.
Mr. Bivins asked if he was saying the Supervisors had not seen it either.
Mr. Randolph said he had not seen that study.

Mr. Bivins told Mr. Rapp perhaps in one of their conversations with Ms. Firehock, they should talk
about that. He said it would be informative for the Planning Commission to at least know about
the water supply. He said there is really nothing in their purview there except that it is something
they should know as they are looking at how they are sort of building out, because most of it is
going down VDOT rights of way. He said there are a few pieces there of private property and
some institutional property, but most of this is going down VDOT rights of way. He said if they
could put that on their discussion about possible presentations, he thought that would be helpful

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 15
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



for them to do. He said he was pleased to see it, but basically, he was surprised at the magnitude
of this project, and particularly if he is now being told the Supervisors have never seen it, he really
is surprised by the magnitude of this project.

Mr. Randolph verified just to be clear that Mr. Bivins was talking about that connector from the
South Rivanna Reservoir to Ragged Mountain.

Mr. Bivins confirmed that connection, the pipeline.

Mr. Randolph said unless the Board has seen it in one year and five months that he was not part
of the Board, he could assure Mr. Bivins that during the time period he was on the Board, they
never saw that. He said they had a presentation about it but never saw the detailed map of all the
properties involved.

Old/New Business

Mr. Rapp said he wanted to touch base on their upcoming schedule; he said he had work sessions
planned out for the Planning Commission for the next two to three months, and then they had the
comp plan coming their way that would consume their work sessions for quite a while. He said on
that topic, the Crozet master plan team are planning to come to the Planning Commission June
8" to talk about the implementation section and the overall draft of the whole plan. He said later
in the month of May, they plan to have another meeting out in the Crozet community as well as a
couple of pop-ups out there to engage them on the implementation components, and then it would
be time to wrap it all up into one final draft that they would like to bring back to the Commission
in June.

Mr. Rapp said the June schedule tentatively had a work session on the 8th, and there are two
open dates in June on the 22" and the 29"; they have asked, if possible, if they could move that
work session in June to the 22" just to give them a little more time in between the outreach with
the Crozet community and finalizing that chapter, so he wanted to pose that to the Commission
and see if June 22" worked instead of the 8" for the next month with their work session, and if
so, he would send out an updated schedule in the next few days for the month of June.

There were no objections to that.
Ms. Firehock asked if they had any information about when they would be coming back in person.

Mr. Rapp said not at this time. He said he knew the Board has the emergency ordinance on their
agenda for the following day to discuss what if any changes are going to happen to that, but as
of now, no specific information. He said he assumed they would wait and see what the Board said
the next day.

Mr. Bivins said he wanted the Planning Commission to be aware that they actually have done two
chapters in the comp plan (the climate action, which is going to be incorporated into the comp
plan, and the housing chapter, which they incorporated into the comp plan). He said right now, as
everything else in Albemarle County, they were ahead of everybody. He said he recognized they
were not going to stay there, but for right now, they were ahead of everybody.

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 16
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



Items for Follow-Up
There were no items.

Adjournment

At 7:29 p.m., the Commission adjourned to June 1, 2021, Albemarle County Planning
Commission meeting, 6:00 p.m. via electronic meeting.

/o

Charles Rapp, Director of Planning

(Recorded by Carolyn S. Shaffer, Clerk to Planning Commission & Planning Boards, transcribed
by Golden Transcription Services)

Approved by Planning
Commission

Date: 06/01/2021
Initials;: CSS

ALBEMARLE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 17
FINAL MINUTES - May 18, 2021



